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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Today the

          3  Committee will hear testimony on Introductory bill

          4  number 326, a bill sponsored by Council Member Hiram

          5  Monsrrate, Chair of our Select Committee on Civil

          6  Rights.

          7                 Intro. 326 creates a confidentiality

          8  policy for the City in regards to certain

          9  information that it collects from City residents who

         10  use City services.

         11                 It is a bill about preserving civil

         12  liberties, more specifically citizens rights to

         13  privacy.  This bill has a long history. It began as

         14  an Executive Order issued by Mayor Edward Koch in

         15  August 1989.  The Order prohibited any City officer

         16  or employee from voluntarily transmitting

         17  information regarding the immigration status of any

         18  individual to federal immigration authorities.

         19                 The Executive Order was reissued

         20  under both Mayor Dinkins and Mayor Giuliani.  I

         21  should note here however, that this legislation

         22  predates Mayor Koch's Executive Order.  The geneses

         23  of this bill is routed in the experience of the

         24  immigrant community in this City.

         25                 It was brought to the attention of
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          2  elected officials in the late 80's that members of

          3  the immigrant community were hesitant to cooperate

          4  with City authorities in emergency situations for

          5  fear that their confidential information might be

          6  shared with others, which in turn could jeopardize

          7  them or their loved ones.

          8                 Such other cases impede the proper

          9  functioning of Police Investigations or the

         10  necessary reporting of crucial health problems.  A

         11  decade and one- half later, not only are these

         12  concerns still valid, but society better see the

         13  value of the universal application.  In this vein,

         14  the Council had sought to preserve the spirit of the

         15  Executive Order and also expand its purview.

         16                 Intro. 326 has been expanded to

         17  protect confidential information, not only in regard

         18  to information Status but confidential information

         19  concerning an individual's health, or disability

         20  status, income tax records, sexual orientation,

         21  status as a victim of domestic violence, status as a

         22  crime victim or witness and public assistance

         23  status.

         24                 These categories may grow, should the

         25  public bring to our attention other areas of
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          2  information that are particularly sensitive and are

          3  better left confidential.

          4                 Intro. 326 expands the original

          5  Executive Order, so it no longer deals with the

          6  concerns of one group of citizens, but now generally

          7  it preserves the civil liberties of all of our

          8  citizens.

          9                 With this history in mind, I would

         10  like to acknowledge the presence of Council Member

         11  Kendall Stewart, Chair to our Committee on

         12  Immigration and Council Member Hiram Monserrate,

         13  Chair to our Select Committee on Civil Rights and

         14  fine sponsor of the bill.

         15                 Now I want to quickly note how the

         16  world has changed since September 11, 2001. There

         17  are growing concerns about foreign born terrorism

         18  affecting us here, most particularly in New York

         19  City.

         20                 There are none more sensitive to this

         21  concern than we here at the City Council.  The

         22  intent of this law is in no way to flout Police

         23  investigative work to weed out terrorism.  As such,

         24  subparagraph 2C, of subdivision B of Section 1114 of

         25  the Intro. Allows for an exception when there is
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          2  probable cause to believe that an individual is

          3  engaging in some type of criminal activity.

          4                 However, we must always be vigilant

          5  about Civil Liberties and never allow fear or

          6  hysteria to make it acceptable to deny anyone Civil

          7  or Human Rights.  Anti- terrorism efforts mean

          8  heightened awareness and necessary precautions, but

          9  they can never mean repealing our Bill of Rights.

         10                 This law recognizes the need to

         11  balance Civil Liberties with security and strive to

         12  achieve such balance for the sake of democracy.

         13                 Additionally, there has been an

         14  attempt within this legislation to achieve the

         15  optimal balance of proper delegations of authority

         16  between federal and local agencies and this Council

         17  and the Mayor's Office. There has been some history

         18  of tension regarding this matter.  And this

         19  legislation properly recognizes the role of

         20  locality, feasibly the Federal Government in such

         21  matters.

         22                 Additionally, this Council fully

         23  understands this charter mandated role as

         24  legislative.  This legislation falls squarely in

         25  such role by legislating a broad confidentiality
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          2  policy for the City and the Mayor's Office will be

          3  charged with its charter mandated role of

          4  implementing such policy.

          5                 Let me now introduce my other

          6  Committee members and I will also ask Council Member

          7  Monserrate and Council Member Stewart if they would

          8  like to make a statement.

          9                 First on my far left, as always

         10  politically, I'd like to acknowledge the Chairman of

         11  our Public Safety Committee, Peter Vallone, Jr. And

         12  also on my far right I'd like to acknowledge Council

         13  Member Michael Nelson, the Chair of our Revenue

         14  Forecasting Committee.  Sitting next to me is the

         15  Counsel to the Committee, Matthew Tollin and also I

         16  want to acknowledge our Policy Analyst Jonathan

         17  Ettricks.

         18                 At this point I would like to allow

         19  Council Member Monserrate first, followed by Council

         20  Member Stewart to make a brief statement in that

         21  order.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you Mr.

         24  Chairman.  Let me thank you for your leadership in

         25  quickly responding to the need for a hearing on this
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          2  bill, this Introduction, which is most definitely

          3  cutting- edge and we look forward to setting the

          4  tone so that other municipalities throughout this

          5  great nation of ours can enact similar statute.

          6                 In my prior career as a police

          7  officer here in New York, I understand fully well

          8  the need that there is to have a balance and to

          9  ensure that we have public safety and civility of

         10  our City and I believe that this bill goes a long

         11  way towards ensuring that.  In fact, to create an

         12  atmosphere where many New Yorkers will not fear

         13  disclosing confidential information and come forward

         14  and cooperate more with the authorities and the City

         15  agencies as is their mandate.

         16                 So, I look forward to an interesting

         17  hearing.  We will be able to disclose a lot of facts

         18  and positions.  Thank you again for the hearing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you Mr.

         20  Chair.  This is an important piece of legislation

         21  for all New Yorkers and particularly for immigrants.

         22    As Chair of the Subcommittee for Immigration I am

         23  pleased that we are here today to consider Intro.

         24  326 and I will focus my comments on how this

         25  legislation pertains to the immigrant community.

                                                            9

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS, CIVIL RIGHTS AND IMMIGRATION

          2                 Without assurance of confidentiality

          3  people question their fate in the New York Police

          4  Department and become reluctant to use the Emergency

          5  Services of the NYPD and to cooperate with the NYPD.

          6    Without confidentiality undocumented immigrants,

          7  who are victim's of crime feel threatened by the

          8  Government entity that is supposed to offer

          9  assistance and protection.

         10                 As a result, people do not report

         11  crimes and the City loses its opportunity to fight

         12  criminal activity.  The Access Without Fear bill

         13  takes the necessary steps to ensure that

         14  undocumented immigrants can contact the police

         15  department in their time of need without fear of

         16  extraneous retaliation.

         17                 This bill is critical to maintaining

         18  New Yorker's fate in the police department and in

         19  the other city agencies.

         20                 I commend Council Member Monserrate

         21  and Perkins for their work on this bill and for

         22  taking the initiative to protect the confidentiality

         23  of all New Yorkers, whether they are immigrants.

         24                 Thank you Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very
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          2  much.  Let me just say to the public, we appreciate

          3  your attendance.  Today we will be having a Stated

          4  Meeting to pass a whole new bill that will provide

          5  revenue resources for us to address a doomsday

          6  budget, that I am sure many of you have heard about.

          7                 With that in mind, I want you to

          8  understand that the set- up that we have here today

          9  is in preparation for that and apologize for the

         10  fact that the regular set up, is not what you are

         11  presently experiencing and again I want to thank you

         12  for what might be an inconvenience but nevertheless

         13  I appreciate very much your presence today. I would

         14  also just like to take a moment to remind you, if

         15  you intend on testifying, please see the Sergeant of

         16  Arms so that you can sign up.  I suspect that there

         17  are more of you out there prepared to testify than

         18  have actually signed up. I just wanted to make sure

         19  that you are aware that is the process. So, the

         20  Sergeant of Arms will sign you up.

         21                 Now with that in mind I want to begin

         22  with our first witness from the Mayor's Office of

         23  Immigrant Affairs, Commissioner Sayu V. Bhojwani. I

         24  hope I said your name properly.  Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Also, while you are getting ready I

          3  want to acknowledge the Chairman of our

          4  Transportation Committee, Council Member John Liu.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon,

          6  could you please raise your right hand, each of you

          7  if you will be testifying.

          8                 Do you solemnly swear to affirm the

          9  testimony you are about to give is the truth, the

         10  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: I do.

         12                 MR. ANGE (phonetic): I do.

         13                 MR. CROWL (phonetic): I do.

         14

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.  For

         16  the record could you please state your name and the

         17  office you are with?

         18                 Sayu Bhojwani, Mayor's Office of

         19  Immigrant Affairs

         20                 Jimmy Ange, Councilman's Office of

         21  Immigrant Affairs

         22                 Anthony Crowl, Special Counsel to

         23  Mayor Michael Bloomberg

         24                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: I want to

         25  first apologize for not having copies of our
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          2  testimony.  We will be getting those to you later in

          3  the day today.

          4                 Good afternoon Mr. Chair and members

          5  of the Committee on Governmental Operations and

          6  other Council Members.

          7                 My name is Sayu Bhojwani, and I am

          8  Commissioner of the Mayor's Office of Immigrant

          9  Affairs.

         10                 Thank you for inviting me here today

         11  to testify on the administration's efforts to ensure

         12  immigrant's access to City's services, as well as to

         13  comment on Intro. 326.

         14                 New York City embraces a long-

         15  standing public policy of encouraging access to

         16  City's services by all New Yorkers, including

         17  immigrants.  To achieve this goal, the Mayor's

         18  Office of Immigrant Affairs, which became a Charter

         19  agency in 2001 by referendum votes, promotes the

         20  full participation of immigrant New Yorkers in all

         21  aspects of City life by fostering communication and

         22  connection between City agencies and immigrant

         23  communities.

         24                 New York City has the largest

         25  immigrant population of any City in the United
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          2  States.  According to the 2000 census there were 2.9

          3  million foreign born persons living in New York

          4  City, constituting 36 percent of the entire

          5  population, up 40 percent from 1990.

          6                 Immigrants and their first generation

          7  children comprise two- thirds of the City's

          8  residents.  Thus, the participation of immigrants is

          9  critical to the success and vitality of the City.

         10  The Bloomberg administration has made immigrant

         11  access to City services a priority.

         12                 As you know, many of the City's

         13  services and programs are available to immigrants

         14  regardless of their status. These include programs

         15  addressing fundamental needs such as public

         16  education, healthcare, housing and law enforcement.

         17                 It should be noted however, that

         18  other City services are not available to some

         19  immigrants due to the constraints of state and

         20  federal law.  In addressing immigrant issues the

         21  Bloomberg administration is cognizant of the new

         22  challenges presented for immigrant communities post

         23  September 11th and is taking steps to access the

         24  concerns of these communities, and to ensure that

         25  immigrants have barrier free access to City
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          2  government.

          3                 Here are some examples of the work

          4  the Administration is undertaking.  First, we are

          5  planning an Emergency Services project in five

          6  languages, the five top languages in New York City

          7  to educate the public about all emergency City

          8  services available to immigrants regardless of their

          9  immigration status. The project has been planned

         10  with input from the City's Emergency Service Agency.

         11                 These services include emergency

         12  medical care, immunization, domestic violence

         13  hotline, the aids hotline, emergency shelter and

         14  food pantry services, prenatal care, 911 to report

         15  crimes or fire code violations, and other similar

         16  services.

         17                 Second, consistent with the goals of

         18  the

         19  Emergency Services project, New York City Police

         20  Department has established a new Immigrant Outreach

         21  Unit devoted to ensuring positive relationships

         22  between immigrant communities and the police and to

         23  ensuring that immigrant needs are met by the New

         24  York Police Department.

         25                 Third, the City's Commission on Human
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          2  Rights has established an Immigrant Employment

          3  Rights project to a new partnership with the New

          4  York Immigration Coalition and the U.S. Department

          5  of Justices Civil Rights Division to inform

          6  immigrants and advocacy groups through a series of

          7  forums and other contacts about the protection

          8  against employment discrimination they have under

          9  Federal and local laws.

         10                 Fourth, the Human Rights Commission,

         11  along with Office of Immigrant Affairs and six

         12  community based organizations is conducting a City-

         13  wide survey to document and understand bias and

         14  discrimination experience by South Asian, Muslim and

         15  Arab American individuals since September 11, 2001.

         16                 Through this effort,immigrant

         17  communities will be informed of their rights to file

         18  complaints with the Commission to address barriers

         19  to equal access and to identify strategies for City

         20  agencies to systematically address discrimination.

         21  So far, we have collected over 900 surveys to

         22  analyze.

         23                 Fifth, together with the Human

         24  Resources Administration, the Office of Immigrant

         25  Affairs has partnered with close to 30 community
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          2  based organizations, to train staff and develop

          3  materials on the new immigrant eligibility rules for

          4  food stamps.  The new federal rules make food stamps

          5  available to new immigrant children and the disabled

          6  and to certain other legal immigrants, whereas the

          7  previous rules did not.  We will provide materials

          8  in outreach in Spanish, Chinese, French, Haitian

          9  Creole, Russian, Arabic, Yiddish, Vietnamese and

         10  Korean.

         11                 And finally, the Office of Government

         12  Affairs recently convened a City- wide task force to

         13  coordinate and collaborate with agencies on outreach

         14  strategies aimed at reaching immigrant communities,

         15  to work on such issues as translation and

         16  interpretation, media strategy and information

         17  dissemination.

         18                 For example, one such collaboration

         19  is assisting the department of using human

         20  development in planning a City- wide conference for

         21  immigrant youth service providers on May 30th of

         22  this year.  The conference will highlight the key

         23  issues affecting young immigrants in New York City

         24  and strategies for government and community based

         25  organizations to help youth address these issues.
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          2                 New York City's long- standing policy

          3  on immigrant access was first formally enunciated in

          4  1989 when Mayor Koch issued Executive Order 124.

          5  That Executive Order aimed to promote access to

          6  essential City services for immigrants by requiring

          7  that information regarding the immigration status of

          8  persons availing themselves of City services be kept

          9  confidential.

         10                 The rational for the order was that

         11  many aliens who resided in New York City failed to

         12  avail themselves of City services largely because

         13  they feared that any contact with the government

         14  agency would bring them to the attention of federal

         15  authorities.

         16                 Because the public- welfare suffers

         17  if immigrants do not send their children to school,

         18  obtain treatment for illness or report crime because

         19  they fear being reported to immigration authorities,

         20  Executive Order 124 sought to alleviate that fear by

         21  prohibiting City workers from disclosing immigration

         22  status, except when required by law, when an

         23  immigrant had consented to the disclosure or when an

         24  immigrant was suspected of engaging in criminal

         25  activity.
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          2                 Federal Statutes and case loss since

          3  1996 however, have affected the orders reporting

          4  prohibition.  Section 434 of the Personal

          5  Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation

          6  Act of 1996 makes it impermissible for the City to

          7  restrict in any way its employees "from sending to

          8  or receiving from the INS information regarding the

          9  immigration status, lawful or unlawful of an alien

         10  in the United States".

         11                 Section 642 of the Illegal

         12  Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act

         13  of 1996 goes further by prohibiting any restrictions

         14  of a government entities ability to maintain

         15  information regarding a person's immigration status

         16  or to exchange such information with INS or any

         17  other federal, state or local government entity.

         18  These laws do not however, impose an affirmative

         19  obligation on City employees to report an alien to

         20  immigration authorities.

         21                 Mayor Giuliani brought a lawsuit

         22  challenging the federal Laws as being

         23  unconstitutional, but lost in Federal Appeals Court.

         24  The Second Circuit Court of Appeals upheld the

         25  federal laws as constitutional and the United States
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          2  Supreme Court denied review.

          3                 Mayor Bloomberg has continued

          4  Executive Order 124 to maintain the City's policy of

          5  promoting access to City Services by immigrants.

          6  The administration is reviewing the Order in order

          7  to determine whether a new policy should be issued

          8  that explicitly complies with federal law and

          9  provides immigrant communities with the assurance

         10  they need to seek City Services.

         11                 Returning to Intro. 326, it must be

         12  noted that the Administration has serious legal

         13  concerns about the bill.  The bill's central focus,

         14  the confidentiality of personal information, is the

         15  subject of numerous details and complicated laws and

         16  regulations at the federal and state level.

         17                 For example, the Federal Health

         18  Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of

         19  1996, as well as related state laws, already provide

         20  extensive regulatory structures governing the

         21  privacy of personal health information, calling into

         22  question both the need for Intro. 326.

         23                 For instance, Intro. 326 would

         24  prevent sharing of certain medical information

         25  between government agencies allowed by federal and
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          2  state law, and needed to provide effective

          3  healthcare treatment. In the case of health crisis

          4  such as a major outbreak of SARS for example, Intro.

          5  326 could hinder information exchanged among

          6  government agencies essential for the prevention of

          7  other illness.  Thus, the bill risks being overly

          8  broad.

          9                 In addition, the 2001 Charter

         10  Revision adopted by the voters authorize the Mayor

         11  to issue regulations on the subject of

         12  confidentiality.  As a result, there is an open

         13  question as to whether the power to regulate in this

         14  area rests exclusively with the Executive branch.

         15  Indeed, Intro. 326 has many legal and policy

         16  ramifications, each of which must be carefully

         17  analyzed to determine its impact on the

         18  enforceability of the bill's provision.

         19                 My office and I welcome the

         20  opportunity to work with you and others in the City

         21  Council and other branches of City government to

         22  continue to ensure that immigrant communities are

         23  fully aware of the services available to them and

         24  that services are accessible to all immigrants who

         25  are eligible for them.  We also encourage you to use
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          2  our office as a resource for achieving these goals.

          3                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          4  testify.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          6  much for your testimony.

          7                 I want to acknowledge the presence of

          8  our Chairwoman of our Health Committee, Christine

          9  Quinn, as well as the Chair of our Parks Committee

         10  Joseph Addabbo.

         11                 Commissioner thank you again for your

         12  presence. We would like a copy of your testimony and

         13  perhaps the Sergeant of Arms can get it from you and

         14  make some copies for our sources if you don't mind.

         15                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: There are a

         16  couple of changes that I made in writing that I

         17  would like to --.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, fine, no

         19  problem at all.

         20                 Much of your testimony focused on

         21  immigrants and confidentiality issues related to the

         22  immigrants.  You realize that this legislation

         23  broadens that beyond immigrants?

         24                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Okay. My

         25  understanding is that the part of the reason for the
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          2  bill is to effect the accessibility of immigrants to

          3  City services, because that is the area in which my

          4  office works. That is the area that I am testifying

          5  on.

          6                 Again, perhaps Council Member

          7  Monserrate would want to speak more to this, but he

          8  had approached our office and the administration

          9  about the immigration provisions particularly of the

         10  bill, which is the area of particular concern for

         11  our office.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I appreciate

         13  that.  Are you prepared to speak beyond just the

         14  questions of the immigrants?  Are you prepared to

         15  speak with regard to the confidentiality with regard

         16  to health, disability status, income tax records,

         17  sexual orientation, status as a victim of domestic

         18  violence, et cetera? Have you had a chance to have

         19  any thoughts with regards to that?

         20                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI:  Well, I'll

         21  just say that I did talk about the issue of health

         22  status.  That is something that the Department of

         23  Health and Mental Hygiene has spoken with us about.

         24  Again, that we are concerned about undocumented

         25  immigrants and immigrants in general access to City
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          2  services, so again we have been looking at the bill

          3  from that perspective.

          4                 I am not prepared to speak in detail

          5  about the other areas. But perhaps Anthony will.

          6                 MR. CROWL (phonetic):  I will comment

          7  on that. I have reviewed those provisions as well.

          8  The administration obviously -- the Federal Appeals

          9  Court decision on concerned Executive Order 124,

         10  left open the question as to whether the City had a

         11  generalized confidentiality policy that incorporated

         12  immigrant confidentiality and from our discussions

         13  with Council Member Monserrate's office that is part

         14  of the impetus for the bill to be inclusive of

         15  status, other than immigration for privacy

         16  protection.

         17                 You should know that the areas of

         18  health, income tax record and other areas that this

         19  bill seeks to regulate privacy for, including

         20  protection of rights for sexual orientation that may

         21  be contained somehow, either through health records

         22  or other records, they are already heavily regulated

         23  by current federal and state laws.  So, the call for

         24  the need to question a local regulation on the area

         25  of privacy protection.  Immigration status is the
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          2  only thing that is not regulated.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The areas that

          4  you said were already regulated?  In which ways are

          5  they regulated?

          6                 MR. CROWL: There is extensive privacy

          7  protection already for federal income tax records.

          8  Health records that may contain information

          9  concerning sexual orientation -- I should say that

         10  sexual orientation is not explicitly provided

         11  protection, but for instance, health records that

         12  may indicate sexual orientation are provided, have

         13  privacy protection.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I am not clear

         15  what health records with sexual orientation are.

         16                 MR. CROWL: If someone's health record

         17  is out there that has for instance someone's status,

         18  whether they are in the same sexual relationship or

         19  whether they are -- Health records contain an

         20  enormous amount of information.  They are heavily

         21  regulated, the privacy is heavily regulated.  I am

         22  saying that perhaps a health record would be one way

         23  that access to that information would be accessed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Sexual

         25  orientation, is that regulated as well?
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          2                 MR. CROWL: Not explicitly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: This law you

          4  know is explicit about this.

          5                 MR. CROWL: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. In your

          7  testimony  raised some concerns about   jurisdiction

          8  .  Would you elaborate on that please?  In terms of

          9  the Council's jurisdiction.

         10                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We don't see

         12  this as stepping across that line, like the

         13  opposite.  We expect that you will be the ones to

         14  implement this policy.

         15                 MR. CROWL: Right.  The 2001 Charter

         16  revisions gave the Mayor the authority to promulgate

         17  rules on the area of immigration status

         18  confidentiality.  So, there is an open question as

         19  to whether that Charter revision gave the Mayor

         20  exclusive authority to regulate in the area of

         21  immigrant affairs or whether the Council could

         22  actually regulate in that area.  If the Council were

         23  to regulate, would it be a curtailment of the

         24  Mayoral powers, that's needing a referendum for the

         25  Council's proposal to take effect.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, are you

          3  saying that wherever the Mayor, probably through the

          4  Council, cannot legislate?

          5                 MR. CROWL: No, I am saying in this

          6  case, that there is nowhere else, it seems to be

          7  that there is a power for the Mayor, there is the

          8  authorization for the Mayor to promulgate rules on

          9  immigration confidentiality, immigration status.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: But, it's not

         11  exclusive in that regard?  You would acknowledge

         12  that?  You  don;t have exclusive authority --.

         13                 MR. CROWL: I'm saying that is an open

         14  question.  It very well may be that you would need a

         15  referendum to pass a portion of a bill that

         16  regulated immigration status confidentiality

         17  provisions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: But, again this

         19  doesn't simply speak to immigration.

         20                 MR. CROWL: That's right, but I am

         21  saying that for that provision of the bill to take

         22  effect, it may very well need a referendum.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: With respect to

         24  other parts of the bill, we don't have a conflict?

         25                 MR. CROWL: No. There is open legal
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          2  questions of course as to the effect of state and

          3  federal laws as to whether state and federal laws

          4  would allow your local provisions to take effect.  I

          5  can't speak on that.  That is obviously an open

          6  question that would need further legal analysis as

          7  to whether in fact there is any parameters effective

          8  of state and federal laws.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, let me just

         10  be clear.  What would incline you to think that

         11  would be a problem if you can't speak on it?  Do you

         12  have some idea as to why --.

         13                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: May I just say

         14  something before we enter that particular question.

         15                 I feel like I would just like to

         16  provide a little bit of context on what has been

         17  going on in the immigrant community that I believe

         18  has lead to this bill and also to my offices and

         19  administration works on these issues.

         20                 Because the 1996 laws made it

         21  impermissible for us to regulate what employees said

         22  to disclose to federal authorities and Mayor

         23  Giuliani then sued the federal government and there

         24  was a Second Circuit Court decision, that Second

         25  Circuit Court decision leaves room for a general
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          2  confidentially policy that it's fundamental to the

          3  operations of the City's agencies.

          4                 It was because of that decision that

          5  immigrant advocate in part, created this, or tried

          6  to get this referendum passed to allow the Mayor to

          7  set certain pieces of information as confidential.

          8  That's the context in which we are looking at this.

          9  The reason we are looking at this from the

         10  immigration lens is because of the movement around

         11  this particular referendum. So, I'll just let the

         12  lawyer answer the rest of your questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I appreciate the

         14  context in which this stems, which is why we make

         15  note of that. But, at the same time we just tried to

         16  broaden it, it just wasn't simply an immigration

         17  law. Yes.

         18                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Right.

         19                 MR. CROWL: We came here to speak

         20  exclusively to the issue of the immigrant

         21  provisions, but I am just saying that the other

         22  provisions that you are asking questions about,

         23  those are questions that we have as to the effect of

         24  state and federal law, on the remaining provisions

         25  of the bill.  They would obviously require further
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          2  analysis.

          3                 I am not saying that they couldn't

          4  take effect, I am saying that the administration has

          5  concerns, in addition to just the concerns about

          6  immigration and immigration status.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We made it clear

          8  to the administration that we were concerned beyond

          9  the immigration issues as well.  Is there anyone

         10  here from the administration to address the other

         11  issues, other than the immigrant?

         12                 MR. CROWL: We are the only

         13  representatives of the administration here right

         14  now.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. It's

         16  disappointing because we were very explicit about

         17  requesting representation for other than just the

         18  immigrate issues.  So, thank you very much.

         19                 Let me just say as a ground rule

         20  folks.  We are anticipating a vote at 3:00 o'clock

         21  with regard to the whole rule message.  I don't mean

         22  to stifle anybody but I would just like us to be

         23  cognizant of the time frame that we are operating

         24  on.

         25                 Council Member Monserrate followed by
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          2  Council Member Vallone, Quinn and then Liu.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

          4  very much Mr. Chair.  I too am a little disappointed

          5  that it appears many of the questions that we have

          6  regarding this bill, in order to have a hearing and

          7  we are doing some fact- finding, I think we're at a

          8  disadvantage by not having full cooperation from the

          9  administration side to answer all the issues,

         10  because we are looking to where collectively, as

         11  much as possible, with the administration so that we

         12  can put forward a bill, a common sense bill that

         13  will benefit as many people as possible.

         14            But, to that extent and since you are here

         15  Commissioner, what currently is the administration's

         16  policy regarding confidentiality, whether as to

         17  immigrants or any other groups? Is there a policy

         18  right now that you can point to for the City of New

         19  York?

         20                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: The policy is

         21  the basic tenants of Executive Order 124.  The ones

         22  that have not been invalidated by federal law

         23  remaining.  City's agencies are abiding by those

         24  basis principles.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Is that
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          2  written somewhere? Is there a policy that you can

          3  point to that says, this is the administration's

          4  policy on the issue?

          5                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Well, the

          6  Mayor reissued Executive Order 124 and to the extent

          7  that some provisions remain valid, that is our

          8  policy.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Do you have a

         10  copy of that with you?

         11                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: We can get

         12  that to you by the end of the day.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: That would be

         14  helpful. You're saying that he reintroduced that as

         15  an Executive Order?

         16                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: He reissued it

         17  as he did a number of Executive Orders when he first

         18  came into office in January 2002.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So, 124 was

         20  reissued and I am assuming the parts the Court

         21  struck down in their decision are deleted?  Is that

         22  correct?

         23                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Not from

         24  Executive Order 124. He reissued the Executive Order

         25  124, the parts that remain valid are those that are

                                                            32

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS, CIVIL RIGHTS AND IMMIGRATION

          2  not struck down by the Federal Law.

          3                 MR. CROWL: What the Commissioner is

          4  saying is that when the Mayor reissued Executive

          5  Order 124 --.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: When you are

          7  saying reissued, he reissued --.

          8                 MR. CROWL: In other words when an

          9  executive comes in after an election, there is a

         10  body of Executive Orders that stands that a Mayor

         11  can either reissue from previous administrations,

         12  all of them in a group, or selected ones.

         13                 Mayor Bloomberg reissued virtually

         14  all the Executive Orders from earlier

         15  administrations, including Executive Order 124. To

         16  the extent that portions of 124 were not generally

         17  preempted by federal law in a Federal Appeals Court

         18  decision or decisions, those provisions stand.  The

         19  general policy of promoting immigrant access still

         20  stands.  It's just the provisions that forbid a

         21  municipal employee from calling INS and reporting

         22  the immigration status.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So that's the

         24  current policy of this administration, prohibiting

         25  the City agencies from calling INS regarding --?
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          2                 MR. CROWL: The policy is -- I'll let

          3  the Commissioner speak to the general policy. I am

          4  just explaining the parameters of where the law

          5  stands.  Executive Order 124 is not effective -- the

          6  provisions are not effective that are affected by

          7  the Federal Court's decision based on the Federal

          8  Laws that were passed in 1996.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Let me try to

         10  be clear here so that -- maybe we can be a little

         11  more brief.

         12                 Give me -- you're saying that the

         13  Mayor has authorized the Executive Order 124.  What

         14  are the points that the current Executive Order

         15  outline?  Give me the points that this current

         16  Executive Order outlines?

         17                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: The Executive

         18  Order when it was issued prohibited information.  We

         19  are not legally able to do that anymore, so --.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: My question

         21  is.  The current policy that you have testified to,

         22  that has been reintroduced by this Mayor, 124, what

         23  are the provisions currently that are part of that

         24  policy?  Because if he issues an Executive Order,

         25  it's the policy for the City agencies to follow.
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          2  Give me what those policies are.  Give me the

          3  points?

          4                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: The policy is

          5  that we should make City services available to all

          6  New Yorkers who are eligible for them and it should

          7  be that crime victims and witnesses in particular

          8  should feel free to come forward and report crime

          9  and not be afraid of being asked their immigration

         10  status.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And that's

         12  it?

         13                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Well, those

         14  are the portions that you were asking me what

         15  portions of the Executive Order were valid.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: I just want to

         17  know --.

         18                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: I think in

         19  general there is a consensus among City agencies

         20  that is important for the public safety and health

         21  of our New Yorkers that people can access services.

         22  So, as a matter of operational policy agencies are

         23  continuing to provide services.  You know that to

         24  determine eligibility we have to ask immigration

         25  status in some cases.  In those cases, agencies are
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          2  attempting as best as they can to provide services

          3  to immigrants and maintain the confidentiality of

          4  their immigration status to the extent that it is

          5  allowed by federal law.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: Thank you.

          7  Now, your name again Sir was for the record?

          8                 MR. CROWL:  It is Anthony Crowl

          9  (phonetic).

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: Okay. You were

         11  involved with the original drafting of that

         12  referendum, were you not?

         13                 MR. CROWL: Yes, I was.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: The drafting

         15  of that referendum to a large degree was as a direct

         16  result of the Second Circuit's decision?

         17                 MR. CROWL: That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: The Federal

         19  Court made a decision, they wrote a decision and

         20  they said in their decision -- Tell me what they

         21  said in their decision about a generalized

         22  confidentiality policy for the City of New York?

         23                 MR. CROWL: While they found that the

         24  Federal laws of 1996 invalidated the reporting

         25  probations, they left open the question as to how
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          2  policy on immigration status confidentiality would

          3  be reviewed as a generalized policy of

          4  confidentiality.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: Would you

          6  agree that this Intro. 326 is a generalized

          7  confidentiality bill or proposal?

          8                 MR. CROWL: I would certainly agree

          9  that you have attempted to create a generalized

         10  confidentiality policy; however, as I said the

         11  administration has concerns about how this policy,

         12  the legislation you have drafted, interacts with the

         13  vast regulatory structure that is already created by

         14  state and federal law in any of these areas.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: Okay. Let me

         16  ask you.  The bill was introduced in October of last

         17  year and we've had meetings and the administration

         18  has had the bill since October of 2002.  So, I am

         19  assuming that there was plenty of time to research

         20  and digest, as much as our staff and the central

         21  staff and the General Counsel to my office has, all

         22  the other court precedents of the different circuits

         23  and any applicable case prescient that would have

         24  impact in any way, shape or form on this bill

         25  standing a constitutional test per se.  I am
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          2  assuming.  Let me not assume.  Let me ask.

          3                 You have stated for the record that

          4  there are some concerns about how this bill

          5  interacts with other state and federal statues?  Is

          6  that correct?

          7                 MR. CROWL: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: Can you

          9  outline to us what those concerns are, specifically

         10  stating some of the statues?

         11                 MR. CROWL: Well, I think Commissioner

         12  Bhojwani mentioned in her testimony about the Health

         13  Insurance Portability and the Accountability Act of

         14  1994.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: I think she

         16  mentioned about two points. It's difficult because

         17  we don't have your testimony, but there was about

         18  two points that you had some concerns as to other

         19  statues that were already law.

         20                 MR. CROWL: Right.  It's the HIPA

         21  statue that I just mentioned and also there are

         22  Federal rules that govern the confidentiality of

         23  income tax records that are already in place.

         24  And, HIPA has a vast regulatory structure over

         25  health information privacy.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRTE: You've

          3  outlined today in your testimony two points.  One

          4  was health regarding HIPA and the income tax

          5  records. Okay.  That is two out of nine categories

          6  where you have some concern.  There are another

          7  seven categories that this bill deals with and as I

          8  understand --.

          9                 MR. CROWL: Well, the vast majority of

         10  categories also are either connected somehow to what

         11  you have mentioned, what we mentioned here or other

         12  federal and state laws.  I mean we have not come

         13  here today to analyze point by point this bill.

         14  That was not our understanding of what this hearing

         15  was about.  It was that Commissioner Bhojwani was

         16  invited and I was asked to come along by

         17  Commissioner Bhojwani because of my interaction

         18  having been working on that referendum in 2001.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me just say

         20  this.  I find it a little odd that you did not know

         21  that we were going beyond just the issues related to

         22  immigrant issues.  Because, it was very explicitly

         23  expressed to the administration about that.  I don't

         24  want to dwell too much about this, but I just find

         25  it odd that you would not know otherwise, especially
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          2  since you are a counsel director and you have been

          3  at these hearings before.

          4                 I am going to ask that we move to a

          5  second round, only in the interest of time, making

          6  sure we get as much participation as possible.

          7                 Council Member Vallone, followed by

          8  Councilwoman Quinn.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you, I

         10  will be brief.

         11                 Good afternoon Commissioner Bhojwani.

         12    I am not sure if you can answer this, based on

         13  what you just said, but I wanted to know the

         14  differences between the policy that is in place now

         15  and what you perceive Intro. 326 to be, what to

         16  require.

         17                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: The policy

         18  that's in place now, the portions of the Executive

         19  Order 124 that are valid in relation to immigration

         20  status, whereas Intro. 326 covers a wide range of

         21  other information some of which are protected by

         22  other confidentiality provisions in the state and

         23  federal law.

         24                 And, I just want to say that again

         25  the reason we haven't focused as much on all those
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          2  various provisions is because the mandate of the

          3  office and of the administration on immigrant

          4  communities has been to look at the immigration

          5  status issue and we have been working on trying to

          6  determine what a new policy should be.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Though the

          8  other agencies appropriate were invited?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, I had

         10  some follow- ups that I don't think you would be

         11  able to answer then.  One quick one.  For example,

         12  something like SARS, how do you perceive this bill

         13  to affect information regarding that?

         14                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Well, my

         15  recollection of the bill is it requires that health

         16  information be kept confidential. So for example,

         17  you know I am a little bit outside my area of my

         18  expertise here, but as I understand it from the

         19  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene that there

         20  are times when someone's health status needs to be

         21  disclosed to a federal or state authority in order

         22  to inform them of what might potentially become an

         23  issue of the spread of a contagious disease in a

         24  locality.  So, it's important that the locality

         25  cooperate with a state or federal authority to
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          2  disclose that information.

          3                 If I am remembering the bill

          4  correctly then, it means that if the bill were to

          5  pass, that health information could not be shared.

          6  Or, that there would have to be certain additional

          7  steps taken in order for that information to be

          8  shared, which in the case of a major outbreak we

          9  might not have the ability to do or the flexibility

         10  to do.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

         12  In the interest of time I yield the rest of my time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         14  much. Though again I should point out the bill does

         15  allow for the designation of an officer responsible

         16  for authorizing the release of confidential

         17  information.

         18                 For clarification, I am sorry

         19  Councilwoman.  Just a quick clarification.

         20                 My understanding is that the

         21  confidentiality Section of this Executive Order was

         22  moved unconstitutional by the Court. Particularly in

         23  terms of not giving up information to INS.  In other

         24  words, the Executive Order says you cannot give up

         25  this information to INS.  The Court says you cannot
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          2  do that, it's a violation of our notion of

          3  federalism.  I guess something called preemption,

          4  I'm not sure exactly the terminology.  So, are you

          5  giving up information now to INS upon request?  Or,

          6  are you not giving up the information?

          7                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: When you say

          8   "you", you mean the agency?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The

         10  administration.  I mean are you allowing this

         11  Executive Order to be implemented in such a way that

         12  the INS will be given this immigrant status

         13  information?

         14                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI:  As I

         15  understand it, the Police Department continues to

         16  cooperate with INS in cases of criminal activity,

         17  which is the only exception that is outlined, even

         18  in the previous Executive Order.

         19                 MR. CROWL: You should also know, the

         20  federal law does not require us to give information

         21  to INS, it just prohibits us from stopping employees

         22  from acting on their own from reporting to INS.  So

         23  basically the issue is, the City is not

         24  affirmatively taking steps in ordinary contact with

         25  people who come in for City services to report them
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          2  to INS.  Of course, as the Commissioner just said,

          3  unless there is certainly suspicion of criminal

          4  activity afoot.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, we'll come

          6  back to this.

          7                 Councilwoman Quinn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: A couple of

          9  quick things. First I just want to applaud

         10  Councilman Monserrate for coming up with this piece

         11  of legislation and introducing it and getting so

         12  many of us to sign onto it.  I think this is an

         13  important bill for many, many communities,

         14  particularly the LGBT community.

         15                 I just want to say I had a

         16  conversation with Councilman Monserrate at the

         17  beginning of this hearing in reviewing the bill and

         18  I should have noticed this before, for it says

         19  sexual orientation and the lead sponsor, Councilman

         20  Monserrate has agreed that in the A version we will

         21  add gender identity and expression as well, which is

         22  in the human rights law.  I apologize for that

         23  omission.

         24                 The SARS issue, I am sure the Health

         25  Committee, as I understand it, if there was a
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          2  situation like that with a national or international

          3  health crisis, that there would be no problem

          4  presently for the Commissioner, whomever is

          5  designated by this law to make disclosures that are

          6  required.  I don't believe this will in any way put

          7  the City's ability to respond to a situation like

          8  that in jeopardy.

          9                 I want to just talk specifically

         10  about the assertions that you made about the federal

         11  law offering the level of privacy protection that

         12  would be necessary as it relates to sexual

         13  orientation, and I would also add gender identity

         14  and expression.

         15                 But, let me just say, when you made

         16  reference to

         17  federal laws, I just want to be clear that the

         18  federal laws, including them provisions that once it

         19  is found out that you are LGBT, you're kicked out of

         20  the military.  In fact we kicked seven Arabic

         21  language interpreters out long before we went to war

         22  in Iraq, people's who skills obviously would have

         23  been useful in Iraq.               So, above all

         24  else we will follow this provision in the military.

         25  So, I don't rest easy at night thinking about the
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          2  federal government protecting the confidentiality of

          3  people's sexual orientation when in fact they engage

          4  in witch hunts to find out the sexual orientation of

          5  members of our armed services.

          6                 Prior to being on the Council, I ran

          7  a lesbian and gay, bisexual and transgender crime

          8  victim's assistance agency. People on a regular

          9  basis are afraid to go to the police when they are

         10  victims of domestic violence, hate crimes, rape, et

         11  cetera. They are afraid that their neighbors will

         12  find out their sexual orientation or gender identity

         13  because they have gone to the police in same sex

         14  domestic violence or hate crimes.

         15                 If I had a law to hand people to say

         16  that can't happen, and even if you told them that

         17  can't happen because it's the police protocol, they

         18  don't believe you.  If I had a law to hand them it

         19  would have made all the difference in the world.

         20                 I just share that because perhaps you

         21  can't understand the level of fear that some people

         22  have.  All of that said, what is it about the

         23  federal laws that you think provide the necessary

         24  level of protection for sexual orientation and

         25  gender identity?
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          2                 MR. CROWL: There is nothing explicit.

          3    I never suggested that there was something

          4  explicitly in federal law.  I am extremely well

          5  aware of the lack of protection in federal law. What

          6  I am suggesting is that when such information is

          7  located in health records, including victims of

          8  domestic violence and sexual orientation status, I

          9  am suggesting that often the confidentiality of the

         10  health record itself, that may have such information

         11  would then render protection.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But, the Access

         13  Without Fear bill doesn't speak only to health

         14  records, does it?

         15                 MR. CROWL:  No, I just suggesting

         16  that's one way often of getting some information is

         17  through health records or certain records that are

         18  already covered by federal law.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  In the areas

         20  that are covered by Access Without Fear?

         21                 MR. CROWL: Well, we are talking about

         22  federal income tax records, certainly and

         23  generalized health, yes that is covered by federal

         24  law.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But the
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          2  provisions that are on Councilman Monserrate's bill

          3  that would get privacy protection. Those, if you

          4  broke out all those areas, they aren't federal

          5  covered.

          6                 MR. CROWL: No, not every single one.

          7  No.  I am only suggesting in those generalized areas

          8  of health and income tax record, that such

          9  information could somehow be understood, that's

         10  where it is protected.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So then I think

         12  that

         13  your statement is really an endorsement of the needs

         14  for this bill since there are the vast majority of

         15  ways that people interact with the government, that

         16  do not provide privacy protection particularly to

         17  the LGBD community or I think any of the other

         18  communities that are outlined in this bill.

         19                 MR. CROWL: I just want to assert that

         20  the administration is not saying that we don't

         21  support certain provisions in this bill.  What we

         22  are saying is we have a legal concerns about several

         23  of the provisions and we came here to testify what

         24  we are doing in the area of the immigration

         25  confidentiality status, which federal law is the
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          2  reason why we are here.

          3                 So, I really don't want you to get

          4  the misinterpretation that we have come here in any

          5  way opposed to ensuring protection for the

          6  individual groups that you enumerated in your bill.

          7  So, let us be clear on that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So you are not

          9  opposed, you're actually open to the concept and

         10  would be willing to go line by line through the bill

         11  and figure out what needs to be tinkered, what i has

         12  to be dotted, what t wasn't crossed, whatever.

         13                 MR. CROWL: In terms of breaking the

         14  immigrant confidentiality out from everything else,

         15  we leave open the question of how to work with the

         16  Council on these provisions. We've never said

         17  otherwise in our testimony today.  And, I hope that

         18  you didn't misinterpret it in the beginning.

         19                 But you do have concerns about the

         20  Council's authority generally in relation to the

         21  2001 referendum and the administration is also

         22  working on a review of Executive Order 124 and

         23  waived perhaps to reassure policy that embraces or

         24  complies with federal law, while at the same time

         25  providing Access Without Fear, to use the Council
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          2  has put out for City services, of course.

          3                 I think we really all are on the same

          4  side here in terms of the general principles of what

          5  we are trying to achieve. It's the method by which

          6  we going about to achieve them and the overall

          7  federal and state legal structures that we have to

          8  work in on how to accomplish the goals.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But I guess,

         10  just a last question towards that end given what the

         11  administration's looking at I can assume that the

         12  appropriate people from the administration, given

         13  that there is this piece of Council legislation

         14  which enjoys a great deal of Council support, that

         15  the administration will be meeting with the

         16  appropriate Chairs and the lead sponsor to go

         17  through what you are doing, analyze it as it relates

         18  to what we're doing to see what we can all be doing

         19  together as it relates to legislation.

         20                 MR. CROWL: The administration is open

         21  to that of course.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         24  Liu.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you Mr.
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          2  Chair for holding this very important hearing and I

          3  want to commend my colleague Council Member

          4  Monserrate for putting this bill forth.  I think we

          5  have, as you put it, the Council has called it the

          6  Access Without Fear bill and that's because it is.

          7                 It's the feeling on the part of many

          8  of these Council Members that there continues to be

          9  a fear to access vital City services. Part of the

         10  reason why there still is fear and therefore the

         11  need for us to put this legislation forward.       It

         12  is good to hear that you are open to working out

         13  legislation, that the administration can support.

         14                 But, my understanding is that we have

         15  to put this legislation forward because the

         16  administration has not fully undertaken the task of

         17  eliminating all fear, particularly among immigrants

         18  and certainly other groups are included as well.

         19                 But there still is a fear on the part

         20  of immigrants to access City services.  That's why

         21  we need to do this.

         22                 But, under the referendum, I think

         23  you're right, the administration could have taken

         24  the steps to make sure people do not fear accessing

         25  services.  But, up until this point, the
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          2  administration has not put out that policy, at least

          3  not publicly.

          4                 I know you talked about the Mayor

          5  reissuing 124.  Is 124 enforceable in any way at

          6  this point given the recent Court decisions?

          7                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: I just want to

          8  say that even though a new policy has not been put

          9  forth, there is no way that we can assert that we

         10  have not done anything.  In my testimony I listed

         11  the many things that we are doing.

         12                 I myself, used to run a community

         13  based organization that served young people who are

         14  from Pakistan.  We are very much in touch with those

         15  communities, we completely understand the fear. It

         16  is something that I, myself and those who look like

         17  me have to experience on many occasions.

         18                 So, I just want to assert that in a

         19  year that I have been in office, that this has been

         20  a huge priority for our office, that we have looked

         21  at it.

         22                 Council may be aware, for example,

         23  that the City policy came under national attention

         24  and scrutiny recently, when the U.S. House  of

         25  Representatives Subcommittee on Immigration boarder
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          2  security convened a hearing entitled New York City

          3  Sanctuary Policy and the effects of such policies on

          4  public safety, law enforcement and immigration.

          5                 The hearing was held in response to

          6  the violent assault of a woman in Queens on December

          7  19th of last year by five immigrants, four of whom

          8  had entered the U.S. Illegally and most of whom had

          9  arrest histories.

         10                 Members of the House Sub Committee

         11  were concerned that the City's confidentially policy

         12  prevented the reporting of these immigrants to the

         13  Federal government.

         14                 I bring that up to you because that

         15  and the post 9 11 world we live in informs the way

         16  that we're developing a new policy in that as the

         17  Commissioner of the Office of Immigrant Affairs and

         18  as a member of the Bloomberg administration, I am

         19  very concerned that whatever new policy is issued

         20  will withstand the close legal scrutiny that it's

         21  going to come under in the Federal Government.

         22                 It's very important that whatever we

         23  put into place is going to be upheld in a Court of

         24  Law and that is the reason for the delay.  It is not

         25  lack of commitment, it's just taking time to analyze
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          2  everything.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I wouldn't

          4  question commitment in any way.  In fact, I am very

          5  happy personally that you Commissioner Sayu Bhojwani

          6  are in the position that you are in. Nonetheless

          7  time still ticks and there are people who are

          8  without services that this City is responsible for.

          9                 Maybe I can just cut my comments

         10  short and get to perhaps two specific questions.

         11                 One question would be.  What happens

         12  if an individual is diagnosed with SARS and a City

         13  hospital worker passed that along to an agent of the

         14  Federal Government.  What happens to that City

         15  hospital employee who passes along the information

         16  about the SARS diagnosis?

         17                 MR. ANGE (phonetic): That may or may

         18  not be allowed in different circumstances.  I just

         19  want to make sure that Council knows that we have

         20  spoken extensively with the Department of Health and

         21  Mental Hygiene and they have very, very serious

         22  concerns with health status in the bill and point to

         23  Federal HIPA act and also state law that allows for

         24  discretionary sharing of medical information with

         25  other state and government agencies.
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          2                 So, certainly there may be some cases

          3  where sharing of that information is inappropriate

          4  for a worker in a hospital and in some cases it is

          5  necessary to provide the needed health care.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: What happens if

          7  that hospital worker passes the information on the

          8  diagnosis of SARS to an Internal Revenue Service

          9  agent?

         10                 MR. CROWL: Clearly the IRS agent has

         11  no need for that information.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So what happens

         13  to that City hospital worker?

         14                 MR. ANGE (phonetic): Well, that's a

         15  question we would have to address, to direct to the

         16  Department of Health and get back to you on. That

         17  doesn't seem like it would be a necessary sharing of

         18  information but we would have to confirm.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: What happens if a

         20  member of the New York City Police Department

         21  happens to pass along information about someone's

         22  undocumented immigrant status to say an INS agent at

         23  a law enforcement conference.  What happens to the

         24  NYPD officer?

         25                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Well the City
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          2  can't take disciplinary action against an employee

          3  because we are not allowed to prohibit them from

          4  sharing that information.  I mean that is just a

          5  huge constraint that we're under because of Federal

          6  law.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: There is nothing

          8  that the administration can do in that regard?

          9                 MR. CROWL: It would be that as the

         10  Commissioner just stated, Federal law explicitly

         11  prohibits any local Executive Order or local law

         12  from prohibiting a municipal employee from reporting

         13  information to a federal authority.

         14                 Therefore, under the current system,

         15  as well as even if your bill were enacted into law,

         16  you could not prevent a municipal employee from once

         17  they have that information, from reporting it to

         18  INS, the IRS, the Department of Health and Human

         19  Services, or the Department of Housing and Urban

         20  Development. Federal law explicitly prohibits it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Does the

         22  administration think that itself is a problem?

         23                 MR. CROWL: As I will leave it to the

         24  Commissioner, we have not been given any information

         25  that leads us to believe that municipal employees
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          2  who are getting such information are calling up INS

          3  on their own.  Now, of course when you are dealing

          4  with people who may be suspected of criminal

          5  activities that may be another story as with the

          6  Police Department.

          7                      But, we have not received any

          8  information about someone going into a public

          9  hospital, or for a vaccination of the Department of

         10  Health and then being turned over by a line- worker

         11  to INS.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         13  much Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Can the INS go

         15  to a hospital and just ask them for all their files

         16  on immigrants?

         17                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Yes, and there

         18  is nothing that anyone can do to prevent that right

         19  now.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Are you

         21  addressing that in the policies that you are

         22  developing?  When do you think you can get to a

         23  point where there can be some public scrutiny of

         24  whatever policy your coming up with?

         25                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: What the
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          2  Federal law does not explicitly prohibit is allowing

          3  us to institute a policy that would not require that

          4  the information be collected.  If the information is

          5  collected and obtained in anyway, we cannot prevent

          6  that information from being disclosed.

          7                 But, if the information is not

          8  collected, then there is technically no information

          9  to share.  So, that is the provision within which I

         10  believe the bill Intro. 236 as well as -- any new

         11  policy should take that into consideration, has to

         12  take that into consideration because it is the only

         13  opening that we have that would allow us to be

         14  compliant with Federal law.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         16                 Council Member Monserrate, followed

         17  by Council Member Stewart.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you Mr.

         19  Chair.  I just have three quick questions.  When you

         20  said the Federal law?  Which Federal law are you

         21  talking of?

         22                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: I am referring

         23  to the  two 1996 laws.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Section 434

         25  and what was the other one?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Section 434

          3  which says that it's impermissible for the City to

          4  restrict employees from sending to or receiving from

          5  the INS information regarding immigration status

          6  lawful or unlawful of an alien in the U.S. And

          7  Section 642 of the Illegal Immigration Reform and

          8  Immigrant Responsibility Act.

          9  That would be in the testimony.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSRRATE: That was in

         11   '96 but the Court decision was after both those

         12  statues were enacted, were they not?

         13                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: The Court

         14  decision allows us to have a larger operational

         15  policy.  But, it still does not allow us to have a

         16  policy that prohibits reporting, its reporting.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSRRATE: This is my

         18  question. This is the debate.  The Court, the Second

         19  Circuit made the decision that can be argued as not

         20  completely in sink with the 1996 laws that were

         21  passed in Section 434 or 642.  Would you agree with

         22  that?

         23                 MR. CROWL: I am not sure I understand

         24  your question.

         25                 MR. ANGE (phonetic): Well, the Second
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          2  Circuit decision did not officially rule on that

          3  issue.  They raised the question, as Anthony Stated,

          4  whether a more generalized policy could work.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: It's the more

          6  generalized policy as opposed to limiting it just to

          7  the INS.  I think that was the essence of that

          8  decision that struck down the other law, the

          9  Executive Order to begin with.  So, we have

         10  attempted through Council Member Monsrrate's

         11  leadership to come up with something that responded

         12  to that general approach and I would assume that you

         13  are moving in the same vein that will allow for the

         14  protection, but not limited to INS.

         15                 MR. ANGE (phonetic): The Second

         16  Circuit decision did not make it clear that the more

         17  generalized policy would be constitutional or legal

         18  or valid.  That is certainly an open question and it

         19  does not address the other points that we're raising

         20  which is the conflict between Intro. 326, potential

         21  conflict between Intro. 326 and other types

         22  confidentiality laws that would allow for greater

         23  sharing of the other categories of confidential

         24  information that Intro. 326 may restrict.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member
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          2  Stewart.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you Mr.

          4  Chair.

          5                 Based on the information that I get

          6  from you, you're really not in support of this

          7  Intro., are you?

          8                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: I think that

          9  the bill needs to be examined further before the

         10  administration can take a position on it. What we

         11  are in support of is access to services by immigrant

         12  New Yorkers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: And, you spoke

         14  about the overly -- it's overly broad et cetera.

         15  Are there any specific areas we can target, or

         16  exceptions you can make.

         17                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: I would just

         18  say that again we have focused primarily on the

         19  collection and sharing of immigration status

         20  information, because that is the issue that my

         21  office and other members of the administration keep

         22  hearing about.           If there is a commitment on

         23  the part of the Council to pursue this bill because

         24  of all the other pieces of information that are

         25  confidential, then that's a separate question that
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          2  needs to be looked at by our office, as well as

          3  other members of the administration who are affected

          4  by the collection and sharing of this data.

          5                 And, I don't think it would be fair

          6  to say that we don't support the bill because we

          7  have really been focusing on the collection and

          8  sharing of immigration status, which is what we are

          9  responding to.  And, I understand that an invitation

         10  was extended to other members of the administration

         11  to speak, but we're here primarily to speak on

         12  immigration status.

         13                 So, I think there is an open question

         14  as to whether we can talk about the other provisions

         15  of the bill, with other members of the

         16  administration and then work with the Council on

         17  figuring out whether the bill makes sense for the

         18  other City agencies implementation of their work.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Alright, another

         20  point, in light of the fact that you stated awhile

         21  that on Federal laws there is very little we can do.

         22  And, the policy should begin with refraining from

         23  collecting the information because when you don't

         24  have the information there is no onus that you have

         25  to give that information. So that is the way the
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          2  immigrant can be protected. Is that what you are

          3  saying?

          4                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Right. Except

          5  that there is many, many cases in which the

          6  information has to be collected for the provision of

          7  the service.  There are very few services, which is

          8  the reason that our office has worked on Emergency

          9  Services Campaign services for example, because

         10  there are a very limited services that you can

         11  access without demonstrating your legal status.

         12                 So, that in order to get public

         13  assistance for example, you have to be a legal

         14  immigrant, resident here for a certain number of

         15  years.  There is a range of criteria for benefits

         16  eligibility so the City worker has to ask

         17  immigration status.  The only time that it doesn't

         18  have to be asked is for a few emergency services and

         19  emergency medical care is one of them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Alright.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: If I may, I

         22  would like to just read from the record from the

         23  Second Circuit Court of Appeals a section that I

         24  think pertains to this whole debate and it reads.

         25  "The Panel invited the City to inform us whether the
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          2  information covered by the Executive Order, might in

          3  fact be subject to other confidentiality provisions

          4  that would prevent its dissemination generally.

          5                 If so, the Executive Order might be

          6  viewed more as an explanatory measure designed to

          7  reassure aliens that information they might impart

          8  was truly confidential even from the INS and that

          9  context the Executive Order might seem more integral

         10  to the operation of City government and Sections 434

         11  and 642 might seem more intrusive."

         12                 How do you respond to that?

         13                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: You know, I

         14  don't think we are saying anything different from

         15  that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Therefore, you

         17  don't object then to the thrust of this particular

         18  bill.  That's because it seems as if your counsel

         19  arguing the federal laws are undermining what it is

         20  we are trying to accomplish here in this general

         21  way.

         22                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: You know, I'm

         23  going to say this again because it's in my testimony

         24  and I apologize that you don't have it, but it says

         25  that Intro. 326 has many legal and policy
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          2  ramifications, each of which has to be carefully

          3  analyzed to determine its impact on the

          4  enforceability. That's all that we said.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, we're in

          6  agreement that this law, as it is right now, is

          7  crafted appropriately and probably as you might

          8  openly wind up with your own policy.

          9                 MR. CROWL: Let me just mention that

         10  one of our main concerns is the extent of which

         11  Intro. 326 would limit the sharing of confidential

         12  information that is permitted and needed under other

         13  laws.

         14                 You just quoted from the Second

         15  Circuit talks about confidentiality laws

         16  confidentiality laws that similarly prevents

         17  disclosure information.  We are concerned about

         18  areas and laws that would allow for discretionary

         19  sharing of information to provide effective

         20  services.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         22  Monserrate, then we will go to our next panel that

         23  will include Donna Lieberman. Scott Rosenberg,

         24  Pauline Park, Kathy Byrnes and Christa Stewart.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I just wanted
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          2  to read an excerpt that I have from the 2001 Charter

          3  Revision Commission, which Mr. Crowley (sic.) Is

          4  extremely familiar with, regarding the broader

          5  confidentiality protection.

          6                 The Charter Revision wrote. "It is

          7  likely that needed federal legislation nor the

          8  decision of the Court of Appeals for the Second

          9  Circuit would require City employees to disclose

         10  information regarding immigrant status for the

         11  proposed Charter Revision were adopted and

         12  implemented in a manner that protects information

         13  regarding immigrant status." That was an excerpt

         14  from the Commission.

         15                 I believe there appears to be a small

         16  contradiction between that and what you are

         17  testifying to today. And if there is explain it to

         18  me.

         19                 MR. CROWL: No, I think what we have

         20  said today is perfectly consistent --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSRRATE: Okay.

         22                 MR. CROWL: That there may be means to

         23  achieve all the goals -- I think that our goals what

         24  the administration is looking at, what we want in

         25  terms of access for City Services, while balancing
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          2  against this post 9- 11 environment with the

          3  balanced law enforcement concerns, suspicion of

          4  criminal activity, we want act, we want to ensure

          5  that people can access City services free of fear,

          6  where they are eligible for those services.  That

          7  they can do so without fear.

          8                 I don't think that what we have just

          9  read is inconsistent with anything we've said today

         10  or about methods to achieve them.  We've come here

         11  today saying that --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSRRATE: The excerpt

         13  talked about requiring City employees to disclose

         14  information regarding immigrant status and that --

         15                 MR. CROWL: There is nothing in City

         16  policy right now that requires City employees to

         17  report anything to INS. We are saying --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSRRATE: There is

         19  nothing that requires them -- hold on, hold on --

         20  but you also testified that information has been

         21  given to the police department and the INS. You also

         22  testified that if the federal authorities requested

         23  the information from City hospitals they could

         24  access it.

         25                 MR. CROWL: Well, you should know that
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          2  Executive Order 124 from 1989, explicitly said that,

          3  explicitly gave the law enforcement carve- out that

          4  said that information could be shared

          5  especially where there is suspicion of criminal

          6  activity.  That's no different than what's going on

          7  today.  I mean it's consistent with the policy that

          8  we have had in place for 14 years.

          9                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: And, there is

         10  a real substantial difference between an affirmative

         11  duty to report and us prohibiting someone from

         12  reporting.  We can't be in violation of Federal law

         13  regardless of whether we think everybody's

         14  immigration's status should be protected or not.

         15                 But, we can't take disciplinary

         16  action against an employee for doing something that

         17  is in compliance with Federal law.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         19  much. I guess we are going to now thank you for your

         20  participation and look forward to our continuing

         21  dialogue with you on this matter and hopefully to

         22  come up with a piece of legislation that protects

         23  the citizens of the City of New York.

         24                 COMMISSIONER BHOJWANI: Thank you.  We

         25  will send you the testimony and the Executive Order.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Donna Lieberman,

          3  Scott Rosenberg, Pauline Park, Kathy Byrnes, Christa

          4  Stewart, Mohammad Razvi, Basil Lucas.

          5                 There is seating on this side as

          6  well, as you wish but it might be good to balance it

          7  out a little bit.

          8                 You will be sworn in and then we will

          9  start.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Could you each

         11  please raise your right hand.  Do you solemnly swear

         12  and affirm the testimony you are about to give is

         13  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         14  truth.

         15                 DONNA LIBERMAN: I do.

         16                 CHRISTA STEWART: I do.

         17                 SCOTT ROSENBERG: I do.

         18                 PAULINE PARK: I do.

         19                 KATHY BYRNES: I do.

         20                 RACHEL LAVINE: I do.

         21                 BASIL LUCAS: I do.

         22                 MOHAMMAD RAZVI: I do.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         24                 Could you each for the record state

         25  your name and the organization you are with?
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          2                 Scott Roseberg, the Legal Aid Society

          3                 Pauline Park, NYAGRA the New York

          4  Association for Gender Rights Advocacy

          5                 Donna Lieberman, the New York Civil

          6  Liberties Union          Sister Kathy Byrnes, St.

          7  Vincent's Medical Center, Staten Island

          8                 Christa Stewart, Safe Horizon

          9                 Rachel Lavine, Safe Horizon

         10                 Basil Lucas, New York City Gay and

         11  Lesbian Anti Violence Project

         12                 Mohammad Razvi, Council of Pakistan

         13  Organization                  CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:

         14  Mr. Rosenberg.

         15                 MR. ROSENBERG: Thank you Chairman

         16  Perkins.  We would like to thank the Committee for

         17  this opportunity to testify in support of Intro.

         18  326, the Access Without Fear bill.

         19                 The Legal Aid Society strongly

         20  supports this important piece of legislation, which

         21  is designed to ensure that all New Yorkers can

         22  access police, fire, health and other essential City

         23  services without fear that private information will

         24  be disclosed.

         25                 We would like to offer our special
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          2  thanks to Council Member Monserrate for introducing

          3  Intro. 326 and we also recognize and appreciate the

          4  backing of the many additional members of the

          5  Council who thus far have signed on and have worked

          6  in support of the bill, including Chairman Perkins

          7  and Subcommittee Chairman Stewart.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: May I interrupt

          9  you for a moment.  You have nine pages of testimony,

         10  which is really 18 since it's double sided so I

         11  would appreciate it, even though I know how

         12  important your testimony is, if you can give us an

         13  abbreviated version, in order that we can try to get

         14  as much in as possible.

         15                 MR. ROSENBERG: I have a very

         16  abbreviated version.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         18                 MR. ROSENBERG: I'm going to leave it

         19  to my colleagues to speak about the importance of

         20  the reasons why we feel the adoption of this

         21  legislation is so important.

         22                 I would like to use my time to

         23  respond to four points that were raised in the

         24  earlier testimony. And, those four points are first

         25  that the bill would be constitutional for the
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          2  Council to adopt.  Secondly, the point concerning

          3  health information and whether the bill is over-

          4  broad.  Third, the question whether the Council has

          5  the authority to adopt the bill as opposed to the

          6  Executive and lastly, I would like to address

          7  quickly why the bill is still necessary. Those are

          8  the four points I would like to address.

          9                 First, as to the constitutionality of

         10  adoption of the bill.  The Charter Revision

         11  Commission addressed this issue when it recommended

         12  adoption of the Charter amendments, as Council

         13  Member Monserrate eluded to earlier in his last

         14  question.  The Charter Revision Commission wrote in

         15  2001.

         16                  "It is likely that neither the

         17  federal legislation nor the decision of the Second

         18  Circuit Court of Appeals would require City

         19  employees to disclose information regarding

         20  immigrant status if the proposed Charter revision

         21  were adopted and implemented in a manner that

         22  protects information regarding immigrant status."

         23                 Now, in context, what the Charter

         24  Revision Commission meant was, that the Charter

         25  Revision recommendations would be constitutional if
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          2  adopted because they would comport with the decision

          3  of the Second Circuit.

          4                 Now, you heard Commissioner Bhojwani

          5  indicate that if the Immigration and Nationalization

          6  Service approached a City hospital and asked for

          7  information about the immigration status of all of

          8  its, or any portion of its patients, the City would

          9  have no power but to give that information.

         10                 That testimony is not correct, as the

         11  Charter Revision Commission indicated.  The City

         12  would have the power to prevent a sort of abusive

         13  disclosure if the Charter amendments are

         14  implemented.  What they do not have the power to do

         15  is to stop such a disclosure now, and they do not

         16  because that portion of the Executive Order has been

         17  enjoined by the Court of Appeals.  But they would

         18  have this power if the bill were adopted.

         19                 As to the remaining reasons why the

         20  bill would be constitutional, I just respectfully

         21  refer the Committee to my written testimony which

         22  goes into those reasons at some length.

         23                 Secondly, as to the point that the

         24  bill would be over- broad.  I have recommended to

         25  the Committee that in the A version of this bill, an
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          2  amendment be adopted that provides that the bill,

          3  that disclosures that are both permissible and

          4  required by the HIPAA statues, that's the Health

          5  Information Portability and Accountability Act,

          6  would be permissible under the bill.

          7                 I believe in fact that was the

          8  intention of the paragraph concerning disclosure of

          9  statistical information.  But, if it is not

         10  perfectly clear that was the intention, then an

         11  amendment should be adopted to -- so the bill will

         12  reflect the provisions of the HIPAA and the Privacy

         13  Act regulations.

         14                 I believe that would fully address

         15  the concerns of the Health Department and Health and

         16  Hospitals Corporation, which I think will readily

         17  prepare to address.

         18                 With regard to the third point and

         19  that is. Does the Council have the power to do this

         20  or only the Mayor?  I would just refer the Committee

         21  to the fact that the City Charter has been amended

         22  in three different places.

         23                 There is a paragraph 18A of the

         24  Charter that specifically says that it is desirable

         25  that the City promote the utilization of City
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          2  Services by all of its residents, including foreign-

          3  born inhabitants, speakers of foreign languages and

          4  undocumented aliens.

          5                 Then there is a Section 18C that

          6  mandates the provision of equal services and a

          7  Section 18G that says the City specifically has the

          8  power to determine the duty of its employees and to

          9  control the workings of City government.

         10                 It goes on to say that the Mayor may

         11  promulgate rules, requiring that information be

         12  obtained by City employees be kept confidential.  It

         13  does not say that the Mayor is the exclusive source

         14  of power to promulgate the rules and we believe that

         15  the Council has ample authority under the other

         16  paragraphs of the Charter and in the first sentence

         17  of paragraph 18G to enact this bill.

         18                 Of course nothing would stop the

         19  Mayor from promulgating rules, implementing the

         20  Council's legislation and that is explicitly

         21  permitted by the Charter.  There is no conflict

         22  between the Charter, between the Council acting and

         23  the Mayor adopting rules to implement that

         24  regulation.

         25                 Lastly, I would just address the
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          2  necessity for adopting this legislation.  First, and

          3  most importantly, I think as Council Member Liu

          4  pointed out, Executive Order 124 is not enforceable

          5  now to the extent that it prohibits the disclosures

          6  by individual City workers.

          7                 Whereas, the Access Without Fear bill

          8  would be enforceable.  The most important reasoning

          9  for enacting the Access Without Fear bill is that

         10  Executive Order 124, while it may have been

         11  repromulgated, is not enforceable in this respect.

         12                 Now, why is this so important?  Well,

         13  the question arose, what happens if a case of SARS,

         14  for example, were identified in New York City.

         15  Well, if a case of SARS were identified I would

         16  think that everyone in New York City would feel the

         17  urgency of that person seeking treatment for their

         18  health condition.  And, in order to assure that they

         19  will seek such treatment, confidentially has to be

         20  assured.  And, if we want to insure that the Health

         21  Department can address health concerns of the City,

         22  the most important step in doing so is to make sure

         23  that information will remain confidential.

         24                 In particular, I note that sexual

         25  orientation, as well as gender identity and
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          2  expression, is not protected as far as I know under

          3  City law or state or federal law.  In addition, I

          4  don't believe that crime victim status or crime

          5  witness status or domestic violence victim status,

          6  are specifically protected under any City law.  So,

          7  in those respects the bill remains absolutely

          8  necessary.

          9                 So, in conclusion, I would just say

         10  that the Access Without Fear bill is fully

         11  consistent with the City's rights and

         12  responsibilities under the constitution and

         13  expressly authorized by the New York City Charter.

         14                 The Council is well within its power

         15  to enact this important piece of legislation, so

         16  speaking for the clients and the communities that we

         17  represent, we strongly urge the Council to enact the

         18  Access Without Fear bill.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MS. PARK: Thank you Mr. Chairman.  I

         22  provided written copies of my testimony to the

         23  Sergeant of Arms so with your permission I would

         24  like to submit that into the record and abbreviate

         25  my statements here.  Council Member Quinn has
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          2  already addressed my point, but I would like to

          3  address how that might be accomplished.

          4                 I am here testifying on behalf of

          5  NYAGRA, the New York Association for Gender Rights

          6  Advocacy, which is the first statewide transgender

          7  advocacy organization in New York.

          8                 We commend Council Member Monserrate

          9  for introducing the bill and we strongly recommend

         10  the addition of gender, as a protective category, as

         11  well as a definition of gender, consistent with that

         12  of New York City Human Rights law as amended by

         13  Intro. 24, which you Mr. Chairman were the sponsor

         14  of, Local law 3 of 2002.

         15                 And, let me briefly say that there

         16  are three ways of doing that I think.  First you

         17  could actually add to the Intro. 226 the full

         18  definition of gender identity and expression in

         19  Intro. 24.

         20                 Second, you could reference that

         21  language, local law 3, and third you could also

         22  provide for separate category of gender identity and

         23  expression.

         24                 I would suggest one of the first two.

         25    Either providing the full definition in the text
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          2  or referencing the text of the City Human Rights

          3  law, the administrative code of the City of New

          4  York.

          5                 So, in conclusion I would like to say

          6  that we urge the co- sponsors of the bill to make

          7  that important addition.  We stand willing to work

          8  with the Council Member's office on how to fashion

          9  that language and we call on the Speaker to support

         10  this bill and move it onto the floor and call on the

         11  Mayor to sign that bill into law.

         12                 Thanks very much Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 We are going to have some testimony

         16  from this side now.

         17                 MS. STEWART: Good afternoon, it's a

         18  pleasure to be here to testify on support of Intro.

         19  326, which would amend the Charter of the City of

         20  New York to protect the confidentiality of

         21  information.

         22  We have submitted testimony, but I will cover a few

         23  points.

         24                 Safe Horizon, as you may know, is the

         25  leading crime victim assistance and advocacy
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          2  organization.  I am Christa Stewart, Senior Director

          3  of our anti- Trafficking Project and accompanying me

          4  is Rachel Lavine with our Director of Governmental

          5  Affairs from the General Counsel's office.

          6                 I am here today to underscore the

          7  importance of Intro. 326 and the ways in which it

          8  will assist Safe Horizon's work on behalf of victims

          9  of trafficking, torture and domestic abuse.

         10                 Human trafficking involves the

         11  movement of individuals by force or under false

         12  pretenses for the purposes of forced labor or sexual

         13  exploitation and New York City has been identified

         14  as a major focal point of human trafficking.

         15  Victims of trafficking are often kept in conditions

         16  of indentured servitude by both physical force and

         17  psychological coercion.

         18                 Traffickers exploit their control

         19  over victims by using immigration status as a

         20  weapon.  If that person reports his or her

         21  maltreatment, the trafficker either threatens to

         22  report the persons undocumented status or to

         23  withdraw the sponsorship, that is the basis of his

         24  or her legal status.

         25                 This population is extremely hard to
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          2  reach, given this vicious mode of control.

          3  Confidentiality is critical to ensuring that victims

          4  of trafficking not only feel safe, but indeed are

          5  safe if they report their victimization.

          6                 Again, these victims of human

          7  trafficking are in circumstances in which violence

          8  is ongoing.  Not only are they subject to violence

          9  here at home, but their family members back in their

         10  home country are open to these threats.

         11                 Disclosure of information regarding

         12  these conditions can often have life and death

         13  consequences, both here and abroad. Whether this

         14  information is shared intentionally or without

         15  forethought, the end result can be extremely

         16  dangerous.

         17                 In addition to our Anti- Trafficking

         18  project Safe Horizon operates an Immigration Law

         19  Project to help battered immigrant women permanently

         20  escape their abusers.  Working closely with Safe

         21  Horizon's Domestic Violence Law Project,  ILP

         22  assists domestic violence victims with Violence

         23  Against Women Act- related cases.

         24                 Immigrant battered women are also a

         25  particularly vulnerable population since all too
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          2  often the threat of having their immigration status

          3  revealed prevents them from pursuing civil and

          4  criminal justice remedies that may assist them in

          5  obtaining safety and self- sufficiency.

          6                 A critical component in all of these

          7  cases in deciding whether to access these resources

          8  at all is the issue of confidentiality.  Victims of

          9  crime and abuse have suffered wrongs that undermine

         10  their sense of integrity and safety.  It takes

         11  enormous courage to report the kinds of crimes that

         12  trafficked persons and victims of torture

         13  experience.

         14                 Our clients often fear not only for

         15  their own safety, but as I mentioned for their

         16  family members as well. Clients make a leap of faith

         17  whenever they call our hotlines or walk into one of

         18  our program sites.  The courage to report crimes and

         19  seek redress or a source of healing, is predicated

         20  not only on the victims' sense that they will be

         21  listened to, but also that what they say will not

         22  further endanger them or their loved ones.

         23                 Establishing trust is particularly

         24  important in New York City's undeserved communities.

         25    Trafficking is a crime in which victimization and
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          2  immigration status converge to erect a severe

          3  barrier to services.  As was mentioned earlier,

          4  since the passage of the 1996 Acts, the traffic

          5  person immigration status can further jeopardize him

          6  or her.  Those federal statutes opened the door to

          7  the sharing by City and state officials of all

          8  collected information regarding immigration status,

          9  regardless of whether this information was collected

         10  in the process of delivering non related services.

         11                 It's an important step forward in

         12  establishing confidentiality. A traffic person, for

         13  instance, should be able to access a City- based

         14  hospital, the City hospital- based- rape- crisis

         15  program, or pursue public services without the fear

         16  that his or her trafficker or another entity may

         17  somehow find out and seek retribution.

         18                 As indicated in Section 1 of Intro.

         19  326, three former administrations have supported

         20  this type of narrowly tailored confidentiality

         21  position.

         22                 And, in summing up we look forward to

         23  working with the Council and pursuing the tailored

         24  provisions so that these communities can seek

         25  assistance and further the goals that the bill seeks
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          2  to pursue.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          4  much. I appreciate that.

          5                 We are again on time constraints. I

          6  apologize if your testimony is being abbreviated,

          7  but we appreciate it in any case.  Thank you.

          8                 MR. LUCAS: Good afternoon ladies and

          9  gentlemen.  My name is Basil Lucas. I am the Senior

         10  Advocate Counselor of the New York City Gay and

         11  Anti- Violence Project here in New York City.

         12                 Confidentiality is an important among

         13  the transgender, lesbian, gay, bisexual and HIV

         14  positive communities. These communities have often

         15  been victimized and revictimized, when

         16  confidentiality has been broken.

         17                 Intro. 326 will help our clients

         18  greatly, as it will allow them to accept needed

         19  services.  It will also help them to protect

         20  themselves and their communities when they are

         21  victims of crime or if they are in need of medical

         22  attention.

         23                 Crime victims should not need to be

         24  afraid of law enforcement.  If someone is a victim

         25  of a crime their personal information, including

                                                            84

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS, CIVIL RIGHTS AND IMMIGRATION

          2  immigration status, health status, gender identity

          3  or sexual orientation should not be used to

          4  victimize them.

          5                 So, we are asking the Mayor and City

          6  Council to take a strong and very public stand

          7  against any federal, or state proposal that would

          8  force local police to act as agents of the INS.

          9                 We should also think that this is a

         10  public health issue.  If someone needs medical

         11  attention, they should not fear arrest in the

         12  emergency room if their immigration status becomes

         13  known.

         14                 We are all aware that we are living

         15  in a time of heightened security and public safety

         16  is paramount.  In our open society the citizens must

         17  be able to seek out without fear, and for this

         18  reason the City Council should pass Intro. 326,

         19  which will establish a new and clear City policy on

         20  confidentiality of private information, including

         21  immigration and status information.

         22                 Thank you.

         23            CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         24                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  I want to thank you

         25  for your leadership with regard to Intro. 326 to
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          2  protect the rights of all New Yorkers to

          3  confidentiality when they need to access government

          4  services.

          5                 Unfortunately we live in an era where

          6  there is a rapidly diminishing sense of confidence

          7  that when we provide information to City agencies in

          8  order to access services that it will remain

          9  private.

         10                 All New Yorkers, including everybody

         11  in this room, has good reason to question whether or

         12  not our sensitive, personal information that's being

         13  captured in City databases is secure and will be

         14  used only for the purposes for which it's provided.

         15                 The prosecution of so called war on

         16  terrorism has led to an extraordinary expansion of

         17  the federal government's

         18  authority to capture, compile and disseminate

         19  information about how we live.  For residence in

         20  some communities America has come to resemble an

         21  oppressive securities state and in the absence of

         22  the protection provided by this legislation even

         23  lawful immigrants as well as U.S. Citizens will be

         24  deterred from seeking City services.

         25  And, they will avoid the agencies of government
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          2  despite risks to health and safety.

          3                 While the Access With Fear law would

          4  not over- rule quite clearly misguided federal

          5  policy, it would provide some greater measure of

          6  confidence that New Yorkers, non- citizens in

          7  particular, will be able to seek City services

          8  without fear of reprisal.

          9                 The recent history of government

         10  anti- terrorism initiative offers compelling reasons

         11  to support this bill.  The Bush administration's

         12  anti- terrorism initiative, LIKE the special

         13  registration program, the TIPS program, which is the

         14  state database collection program, the Total

         15  Information Awareness Program, which is a global

         16  information dragnet and its air analog, the CAPS- 11

         17  program are all examples of why we need this

         18  legislation.

         19                 I want to use just one City example.

         20  When we learned about the demonstration debriefing

         21  forms that were being used by the New York City

         22  Police Department recently, we learned that one of

         23  the questions that was being asked individuals who

         24  were arrested as political protest, was their

         25  immigration status.  We don't know whether that
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          2  information was shared with federal agencies.  It's

          3  a question that the police department should come

          4  here and answer.  But, the bottom line is, it

          5  shouldn't be shared with federal agencies and this

          6  bill would prevent it.

          7                 So, we urge you to pass this

          8  legislation, we desperately need it, so that all New

          9  Yorkers are freer to access the government services

         10  that they are entitled to and that we rely on them

         11  to access, whether that is police, health or fire or

         12  whatever.  This bill is critical and long overdue

         13  and we commend your leadership in fighting for it.

         14  Thanks.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         16                 MR. RAZVI:  Good afternoon, I am

         17  Mohammad Razvi, Executive Director of Pakistan

         18  Organization.  It is an organization to help the

         19  South Asian community that really was in fear.

         20  Prior to 9- 11 the South Asian community was already

         21  isolated and poverty stricken.  People of the

         22  community toiled at sub- minimum wage jobs, lived in

         23  substandard housing, had limited access to health

         24  care and suffered from low levels of English

         25  proficiency.
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          2                 Following 9- 11 the rise of racist

          3  brutality and racial profiling and selective

          4  immigration enforcement has only added to the woes

          5  of the South Asian population.  The initiation of

          6  the phenomenon of Special Registration has created a

          7  deep sense of fear among the community.

          8                 Immediately after the tragic events

          9  of 9- 11, the perception was that some misguided

         10  elements within the society hated the South Asian

         11  community, resulting in hate crimes. Whereas, later

         12  on with the government selectively enforcing

         13  immigration rules, it became the majority opinion

         14  within the community members that the government

         15  hated them also.  This combination of factors has

         16  created a deeply isolated and undeserved community

         17  with serious fears about law enforcement agencies.

         18                 I wanted to present this case in

         19  front of you, a case of Mohammad.  Mohammad was

         20  stabbed in his hallway at the place of his residence

         21  in Midwood.  He was stabbed so badly that Doctors

         22  had to put in 40 stitches to close up the deep

         23  wounds that he had. But, the fear of the police

         24  closed his mouth within seconds.  He claimed to the

         25  paramedics that he stabbed himself.  Things like
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          2  this are going to happen.

          3                 I have a case where a child who was

          4  teased and bullied by his classmates, he goes to his

          5  parents and his parents are telling him to shutup,

          6  don't worry about it.  This is what is happening to

          7  the of the public.

          8                 All this makes the child submissive

          9  to truant behavior at the hands of these fellow

         10  classmates, who in turn take advantage of this

         11  situation.

         12                 Are we as leaders of the world going

         13  to nurture our children in the 21st century with

         14  such kind of feelings?  We have had cases reported

         15  from many parents, who have chosen to remain silent

         16  spectators.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Introduce yourself please.

         21                 UNIDENTIFIED PERSON: I am the

         22  Executive Director of the New York Immigration

         23  Coalition.  Thank you Council Member Perkins,

         24  Council Member Stewart, Council Member Quinn and

         25  Monserrate for taking such a strong interest in this
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          2  bill.

          3                 As you know, I believe the New York

          4  Immigration Coalition is an umbrella for roughly 150

          5  groups in New York that work with immigrants and

          6  refuges.

          7                 We've been supporters of this bill

          8  for several years now, waiting for it to be passed,

          9  waiting for similar practice to be put into effect

         10  by the Mayor and now hoping that the Council will

         11  overcome the stalling that has been going on in the

         12  Mayor's office trying to get this done, since it is

         13  so essential to immigrant populations here in the

         14  City.

         15                 As you know, immigrants and their

         16  children are two thirds of who live here in the City

         17  right now.  We simply cannot expect the City to run

         18  effectively, our police officers to be able to do

         19  their work, our public health workers to protect the

         20  public health, if almost two- thirds of the City is

         21  afraid to come forward and interact with those

         22  agencies.

         23                 That's why this law is so essential

         24  that it be passed so people feel safe coming forward

         25  and that the City is able to have its health and
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          2  safety protected.  We think this law is particularly

          3  important in the post 9- 11 context, where so many

          4  Muslim, Asian and South Asian communities are

          5  subject to discrimination, hate crimes, bias crimes.

          6

          7                 You just heard of a case that has

          8  gotten a fair amount of attention through the

          9  Village Voice and other publications.  That is only

         10  one of dozens that have been reported to our office,

         11  hundreds that have been reported to wider networks

         12  around the City over the last two years.

         13                 Hundreds of immigrants are afraid, in

         14  this post 9- 11 context to be interacting with the

         15  police and we believe that they have reason to be

         16  afraid because we do not have any assurance that the

         17  police will not pass on their immigration status,

         18  share information with other law enforcement

         19  entities because they are actively involved in a

         20  variety of racial profiling activities through their

         21  interaction with the FBI and the anti- terrorism

         22  task forces.

         23                 It is widely known in immigrant

         24  communities, the NYPD wind- breakers are there, as

         25  these arrests are made of people through the special
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          2  registration program. The addition of new names to

          3  the NCIC database and the like, that has made it a

          4  very perilous existence for Muslim, Arab and South

          5  Asian immigrants in the City.

          6                 It's also essential from a health

          7  perspective, you will see in my testimony, we have

          8  cases in groups who are reporting to us some

          9  problems as immigrants on Staten Island who suffered

         10  a serious injury on a construction site.  He may

         11  lose the use of his hand and has been afraid to go

         12  forward and get care at the local hospital because

         13  he doesn't have assurances that even though he may

         14  be eligible for emergency Medicaid he is afraid to

         15  pursue that application for fear he may get in

         16  trouble for being found here without papers.

         17                 We have a tragic story from Kerrinne

         18  (phonetic) Immigrant Services, another one of our

         19  member organizations who is working with a 16 year

         20  old Mexican teenage who was raped, but she has been

         21  afraid to report that to the police, again for fear

         22  of being undocumented.

         23                 We also have a group of ours down in

         24  Queens that is working with a young man, a Muslim

         25  scholar who was walking on the street.  He was
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          2  attacked and beaten by several men because he looked

          3  Muslim.  He also has not come forward to report that

          4  crime again because he knows of the inter- action

          5  between the NYPD, other local law enforcement

          6  authorities and the fact there is simply no

          7  assurance that if people come forward that their

          8  immigration status will not be shared.

          9                 It is very hard to sit still and hear

         10  the testimony of people representing the City.

         11  Earlier today there's been a lot of misinformation

         12  about what the Council can and cannot do.  I would

         13  urge you to particularly read closely the testimony

         14  of the Legal Aid Society in this regard.  They have

         15  done a very, very thorough analysis of the bill.

         16                 We approached the Mayor's office over

         17  a year ago with extensive analysis about the bill,

         18  about the need for it, the need for them to reissue

         19  the Executive Order and unfortunately they have been

         20  taking, what we believe, is quite an unusual amount

         21  of time, to be studying this issue.

         22                 We think that the time for study is

         23  long overdue. This law should have been passed upon

         24  Mayor Bloomberg's entry into office.  We should not

         25  still be arguing about it a year and a half later
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          2  and we urge the Council to act quickly and get this

          3  passed.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 SISTER BYRNES:  Good afternoon, I

          8  have handed in my written copies to the Council

          9  Members and hopefully you each have a copy.

         10                 Honorable Council Members.  My name

         11  is Sister Kathy Byrnes.  I work as a bilingual

         12  Community Resource Coordinator for Saint Vincent

         13  Catholic Medical Center on Staten Island.

         14                 My position is funded by my

         15  congregation, the Sisters of Charity of New York, in

         16  response to the needs of the poor on the North shore

         17  of Staten Island, especially the immigrant

         18  populations.  My primary work is to advocate for the

         19  undeserved and the uninsured and to enable them to

         20  access health care and other needed social services.

         21    My work interfaces with public assistance,

         22  medicaid, food stamps, housing, legal aid, district

         23  attorney's office, police et cetera.

         24                 Staten Island is the fastest growing

         25  borough in New York and it ranks the highest of the
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          2  top four fastest growing counties in New York State.

          3  We are growing at a rate of about 6,000 people

          4  annually.  We have an increase of 77 percent

          5  Hispanics from the last census.

          6                 I have assisted hundreds of Hispanics

          7  within the community and the hospital, out of a

          8  store front which I work in throughout the week.

          9  The majority of these immigrants come from Mexico,

         10  Latin and South America, all for the purpose to rise

         11  out of the cycle of poverty and to eventually become

         12  U.S. Citizens.

         13                 They are hard working family people

         14  who have often been abused and threatened in their

         15  work and living places because of their lack of

         16  documentation.

         17                 Since you have my testimony, I will

         18  just go over a couple of the cases very quickly.

         19                 Jorge is a young Mexican,

         20  undocumented, adult male who initially called me

         21  because he needed assistance from the emergency room

         22  billing.  He was a victim of a severe beating and

         23  robbery on the street to which the police responded

         24  and brought him to St. Vincent's Medical Center.

         25                 He had severe injuries to his eye.
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          2  He was examined and released and told to return the

          3  next day for pre- surgery eye tests.  When he came

          4  to Bayley Seton Hospital he did not continue the

          5  process.  He left because he was afraid of what was

          6  going to happen.  When I tracked down how I could

          7  help him with the bill and the seriousness of his

          8  eye from the eye clinic, it was important that he

          9  return and be examined.  I had to call him back up

         10  and convince him that he should access the services

         11  and that the hospital was not connected to INS.

         12                 Jorge did return the next day and

         13  received follow- up care.  He recuperated well and

         14  did not need the eye surgery.

         15                 Another case was Maria who was

         16  referred to me from the El Centro de Trabajadores

         17  Latinos Center in Manhattan for assistance with some

         18  social services on Staten Island.  She rents a

         19  single room  with her family, in an apartment.  She

         20  is undocumented, but her two youngest children were

         21  born here.  Her husband does not have stable work

         22  and they were barely surviving and they needed to

         23  ap[ply for public assistance.  I accompanied her to

         24  the office. She was very reluctant and afraid to

         25  apply for the children.
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          2                 The clerk at the welfare office on

          3  Staten Island made it very difficult to even receive

          4  an application.  She kept saying that the mother

          5  didn't have a social security number and she was an

          6  illegal alien.  Finally, to break the cycle of

          7  questioning, I asked Maria to present the social

          8  security cards of her children. She finally did and

          9  gave me the application.  She was eventually denied

         10  for public assistance for her children, but I helped

         11  her with Medicaid and food stamps.

         12                 But one other story, which I think is

         13  important to mention is the case of Marsela, a

         14  young, single, Mexican, undocumented teenager, who

         15  arrived on Staten Island four years ago. She began

         16  receiving verbal threats from teenagers in the area

         17  of Port Richmond.  She thought they were connected

         18  to gangs from Brooklyn.  She tried to take

         19  precautions but eventually she became very afraid to

         20  do her daily activities.

         21                 When she came to talk to me about her

         22  concerns she was amenable to have an interview with

         23  a Spanish speaking police detective from Brooklyn

         24  who works closely with the Gang Intelligence Unit on

         25  Staten Island. I arranged a meeting in a local
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          2  Catholic Church.  The police were trying to

          3  infiltrate the gang activity at the time and to

          4  gather more facts about their operations with the

          5  goal of lessening the gang activity in Port

          6  Richmond.

          7                 Marsela cooperated with the police

          8  and their questioning.  She stated to me that she

          9  felt much better after meeting with the police,

         10  knowing that they were also trying to help her.

         11  Both sides were grateful for the meeting and were

         12  mutually aided.

         13                 These cases demonstrate how

         14  undocumented people were able to access public

         15  assistance services, medicaid, food stamps, medical

         16  care even though they were afraid to come forward.

         17  Also, the local police in two boroughs were assisted

         18  in doing their work by an undocumented immigrant.

         19                 All of this was possible because our

         20  social services and services provided by our New

         21  York City civil servants are not connected to INS.

         22  Our City is a City of immigrants and this is part of

         23  our proud heritage.

         24                 May I remind you that Article 25 of

         25  the Universal Declaration of Human Rights of the
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          2  United Nations declares that every human being "has

          3  the right to a standard of living adequate for

          4  health and the well- being of himself and his

          5  family, including food, clothing, housing and

          6  medical care and necessary social services, and the

          7  right to security in the event of unemployment,

          8  sickness, disability, widowhood, old age".

          9                 I strongly affirm and request that

         10  this present City Council endorse and pass Intro.

         11  326 "Access Without Fear". We need new City

         12  regulations on confidentiality of private

         13  information, including immigration status

         14  information.  We do not need the local police to

         15  enforce immigration laws nor act as INS agents.

         16                 We need to create a climate where all

         17  residents of the City,k natives and foreigners, feel

         18  safe and secure and have access to healthcare,

         19  services for victims of domestic violence, public

         20  assistance, police and fire protection, without fear

         21  of disclosure of confidentiality.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 COUNCILPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         24                 Faith McClellan and Danny Rosenthal?

         25                 MS. McCELLAN: My name is Faith
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          2  McCellan, I am a counselor at the Sunset Park Adult

          3  Education Center, a Brooklyn CBO serving over 500

          4  immigrant families from 55 different countries.

          5                 When talking with these immigrants

          6  about their struggles, I repeatedly hear story after

          7  story of people who do not access basic public

          8  services because they fear losing their

          9  confidentiality.  I will briefly present three

         10  stories to you and I have changed these clients

         11  names.

         12                 Ms. Abramelia is a Palestinian woman

         13  with a 15- year old son at Fort Hamilton High School

         14  in Brooklyn.  Her son was recently helping with a

         15  volunteer event outside the school when he was

         16  approached by an adult man shouting racial slurs at

         17  him and threatening to hurt him physically.

         18                 Ms. Abramelia was fearful for her

         19  son's safety but did not want to call the police.

         20  Many of her friends had recently been interrogated

         21  and Ms. Abramelia did not want to reveal her

         22  husbands immigration status.  She told me the police

         23  care about politics, they don't care about us, they

         24  won't keep us safe.

         25                 Mr. Gomez is in his late 40's and was
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          2  recently told by his doctor that he needed

          3  diagnostic procedures to examine an infected and

          4  possibly cancerous prostrate.  Mr. Gomez unable to

          5  pay the cost out of pocket went to a Brooklyn

          6  Medicaid office to see if he would qualify.

          7                 Although Mr. Gomez is a qualified

          8  alien legally eligible for Medicaid, Mr. Gomez was

          9  incorrectly told by a staff person that he did not

         10  qualify because he did not have a social security

         11  number. Although I explained to Mr. Gomez that he

         12  was in fact eligible and offered to help him obtain

         13  coverage, Mr. Gomez was fearful of returning to the

         14  Medicaid office.  He explained to me, my biggest

         15  hope is to become a citizen.  My fear is that I will

         16  be deported.  The office already knows that I don't

         17  have a social security number and they might tell

         18  someone.  I don't want to take any chances.

         19                 Ms. Gonzales and her husband are

         20  undocumented with three American born children.  Ms.

         21  Gonzales came to me in desperate financial

         22  circumstances and I suggested that the children

         23  apply for food stamps.  Ms. Gonzales shook her head

         24  in fear.  She explains that she had been to a

         25  Brooklyn Food Stamps Office before, but that she had
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          2  left because the worker had pressed her for details

          3  about her own immigration status.

          4                 I explained to Ms. Gonzales that she

          5  was only legally required to prove the immigration

          6  status of the children and not of herself, but Ms.

          7  Gonzales was scared off by her prior experience.

          8  She said she would rather cope on her own, rather

          9  than risk deportation.

         10                 I hear stories like these every day.

         11  The most common words that I hear from my clients

         12  are, I'm afraid, I'm afraid, I'm afraid.  As you

         13  know, nearly two- thirds of New Yorkers and their

         14  children are from immigrant families but too many of

         15  these families are unable to access basic services

         16  because of their fear of confidentiality.

         17                 As you know, Intro. 326 will address

         18  this gap in service and I kindly for the Council

         19  Member's support.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         22  much.                         Council Member

         23  Stewart?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I just have one

         25  question and if one can answer it briefly and the
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          2  question is.  You heard that the Director of

          3  Immigrant Affairs from the Mayor's office said that

          4   -- the Commissioner said that Intro. Would be

          5  directly opposing to the Federal law. How do you

          6  answer that critic?

          7                 MR. ROSENBERG: I'll take a stab at

          8  that.

          9                 The Court of Appeals decision makes

         10  it clear that a generalized confidentiality policy,

         11  if it were integral to the operation of the City

         12  government, would stand a good chance of sustaining

         13  judicial scrutiny.  Is it a 100 percent chance?  I

         14  cannot tell you. But, I think it's a good chance.

         15  It's a good enough chance that the Charter Revision

         16  Commission actually stated that it believed that it

         17  would sustain a challenge.

         18                 The reason we believe it would

         19  sustain a challenge is because the constitution

         20  gives state and local governments a certain amount

         21  of control over their sovereign operations and that

         22  includes prescribing the duties and responsibilities

         23  of state and local employees.

         24                 We believe the constitution gives

         25  that duty and that right to New York City.  And,
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          2  that is why we believe that the Access Without Fear

          3  bill would be sustained by the courts.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: And the last

          5  part, that it's too broad?  How would you address

          6  that?

          7                 MR. ROSENBERG: Well, as I indicated

          8  in my testimony, I believe that in the A version of

          9  the bill, an amendment should be adopted that

         10  permits the disclosure of information consistent

         11  with the recently issued Federal Privacy rules.  I

         12  think that there is a general consensus that if that

         13  amendment is made the concerns of the Health

         14  Department and the Health and Hospital's Corporation

         15  will be fully addressed.

         16                 Personally, I think that the

         17  paragraph concerning the disclosure for statistical

         18  purposes was adequate and was intended to address

         19  that.  That if the Health Department or the Health

         20  and Hospital's Corporation believes that the

         21  paragraph is not adequate, then an amendment should

         22  be adopted to conform that the Intro. 326 to the

         23  recently enacted regulations.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all

          3  very much.

          4                 This has been a very informative

          5  hearing.  We very much appreciate your testimony.  I

          6  think it gives us a lot to work with, a lot of

          7  assurance that we are on the right track.

          8                 I am pleased that the administration

          9  indicated clearly that they were not hostile to what

         10  it was we were trying to do.  They had, in fact

         11  quite the opposite, felt that they were somewhat

         12  supportive of what we were trying to accomplish.

         13                 They had some questions as to

         14  constitutionality, legality and were actually in the

         15  process of doing something similar in terms of an

         16  Executive regulation or order.  So they seem to be

         17  quite positive about sitting down and trying to work

         18  something out.  And, I think that's been very

         19  productive for the purposes of this meeting, since

         20  in fact, we have not had that kind of indication on

         21  a positive way from them up until now.

         22                 So, with that in mind, I think we

         23  were able to make a giant step forward, not only in

         24  flushing out the issues, but also in developing

         25  somewhat of a relationship with the administration
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          2  that can prove to be successful in terms of this

          3  Access Without Fear, that not only would protect the

          4  interests of the immigrant community, but that would

          5  protect the interest of the citizens of New York

          6  City in general.

          7                 So, I want to thank you all very much

          8  and with that in mind, this hearing is adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing adjourned 3:12 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 5th day of May 2003.
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         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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